SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 6, 2013
9:09 a.m

9:09: 04 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Kelly called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 9:09 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Fai rcl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

ALSO PRESENT

Margaret Dowing, Staff, Senator Cathy G essel; Sarah
Fi sher-Goad, Executive Director, Al aska Energy Authority,
Depart ment of Commerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent;
Ted Leonard, Executive Director, Al aska | ndustri al
Devel opnment and Export Authority; David Teal, D rector,
Legi sl ative Finance Division

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Don Habegar, Director, D vision of Corporations, Business
and  Prof essional Li censi ng, Depart ment of Commer ce,
Community and Econom c Devel opnent; Harl ey Hi ghtower,
Architect, Anchorage; Colin Mynard, C vil Engineer, AELS
Board, Anchorage; Janet M Matheson, Architect, Anerican
Institute of Architects, Fairbanks; Dale Nelson, GCvil
Engineer, Chair of Alaska Professional Design Council
Legislative Comrmittee, Palmer; David Messier, Tanana Chiefs
Conf er ence, Fai r banks; Bob  Shef chi k, Chai r, Fai r banks
Energy Council, Fairbanks

SUMVARY



SB 16 BD OF ARCHI TECTS, ENG NEERS, SURVEYORS

SB 16 was REPORTED out of conmmittee with a "do
pass" recomendation and with a new fiscal inpact
note from the Departnent of Commerce, Community
and Econom c Devel opnent .

SB 21 O L AND GAS PRODUCTI ON TAX
SB 21 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD.

SB 23 Al DEA: LNG PRQJECT; DI VI DENDS; FI NANCI NG
SB 16 was REPORTED out of committee with a "do
pass" recomendation and with a new fiscal inpact
note from the Departnent of Commerce, Community

and Econom c Devel opnent .

#sb16
SENATE BI LL NO 16

"An Act relating to the Board of Registration for
Architects, Engineers, and Land Surveyors and to the
Departnent  of Conmmer ce, Communi ty, and Econom c
Devel opnent . "

9:10: 10 AM

MARGARET DONLI NG  STAFF, SENATOR CATHY d ESSEL, expl ained
SB 16. She referred to the Sponsor Statenent.

SB 16 revi ses statutes gover ni ng architects,
engi neers, and land surveyors in Al aska, designating a
full-time investigator specifically for the State
Board of Registration for Architects, Engineers, and
Land Surveyors (AELS)

The AELS Board s mission, as defined in statute, is to
protect public health, safety and welfare by ensuring
that those entering the practices of architecture,
engi neering, and |and surveying neet m ninum standards
of conpetency, and nmaintain those standards during
their practice, by requiring licensure to practice in
the state. The Board enforces the |icensure and
conpetency requirenents and responds to conplaints
brought by the public.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 03/06/13 9:09 A M



Currently, the AELS Board shares one part-tine
investigator with six other boards that oversee a
total of 18,095 licensees, of which 6,439 I|icensees
are under the AELS Board.

According to the board, because of the negative
econonm c conditions in various parts of the United
States, a significant nunber of corporations and
individuals are relocating to Alaska and nmany are

practicing wthout proper licensure or know edge of
applicable statutes and regulations. In 2012 alone,
the AELS Board added 490 new |licensees to its
over si ght.

In addition to the already growing workload for the
part-tinme AELS Board investigator, pressure on the
investigator to spend tinme on the other six boards to
which he is also assigned is increasing. The
efficiency and effectiveness of the State's |icensing
investigation process is further reduced by only
having a single shared investigator who nust maintain
know edge of the various statutes and regul ations of
seven different boards.

SB 16 also renoves the constraint that exam nations
for licensure be witten. Wth advancenments in
technol ogy, exami nations are noving to an electronic
format which will further increase efficiency.

SB 16 will better equip the AELS Board to nmintain
proper oversight of its l|icensees, thereby uphold the
reputation and integrity of the disciplines within its
purview, and ultimately ensure its ability to protect
public health, safety, and welfare.

Ms. Dowling explained the fiscal note. She stressed that
regul atory boards nust be self-supporting through |icensing
fees. She pointed out that the board had sufficient carry-
forward program receipts to cover the initial cost. The new
influx of revenue would be generated in Novenber and
Decenber of 2013, as the |license fees becone due. She noted
that, currently, the license fees were $125 for a two-year
license. She remarked that the fee could be increased if
needed, but stressed that an anticipated fee-increase would
be m ni mal .

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 03/06/13 9:09 A M



Senat or Dunleavy surmsed that the fee would pay for the
extra position. Ms. Dowling agreed, and stressed that the
fee nust pay for it.

Senator Dunleavy wondered if the position would be
elimnated, if the fees were not able to pay for the
position. Ms. Dowling deferred to M. Habegar.

DON HABEGAR, DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF CORPCRATI ONS, BUSINESS
AND  PROFESSI ONAL LI CENSI NG, DEPARTMENT OF COMVERCE
COMUNITY AND ECONOM C  DEVELOPMENT  ( DCCED) (via
tel econference), replied that there was a nechanism by
statute whereby a board's revenue and expenses were
annually reviewed. He added that every two years the
prof essional 1licensing groups renewed their |icenses. He
stressed that the annual and biannual reviews allowed the
division the ability to adjust fees according to statute;
and could increase or decrease fees based on the
equi | i brium between revenues and expenses.

Senator Dunleavy surmsed that the l|license fees would pay
for the new position. M. Habeger responded that the
license fees would pay for the position.

9:16: 30 AM

Senator Dunl eavy asked if the position would be elimnated,
if the license fees were not available to cover the cost of
the position. M. Habeger responded that the statute
required the division to collect revenues that were
approximately equal to the fee; however there may be |ess
revenue, which would cause a fee adjustnent to backfill
unantici pated cost. He stressed that the fees were
collected two years in advance of expenses.

Senator Dunleavy remarked that he was interested in
nonitoring the growh of the operating budget.

Senat or Bi shop wondered if the revenue adjustnent
requirenent was witten in statute or regulation. M.
Habeger responded that the statute required DCCED to
collect revenues that approximately equaled expenses,
foll owed by adjusting the fees through the regulatory the
process. He stated that there was an analysis; followed a
presentation to the board; the board gives their approva
or feedback; the regulatory package is released, and open
to coomments; resulting in adjustnents or adoption.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 03/06/13 9:09 A M



Senator Bishop noted an increase in the workload by 116
cases, and wondered if there were nore fraud cases since
the onset of the recession. M. Habeger replied that he was
unsure of the types of cases in review, and deferred to a
board nmenber to reply to that inquiry.

Senator Bishop agreed to receive a response at a later
dat e.

HARLEY H GHTOVER, ARCHI TECT, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), explained that the board was very large
and conplex; and stressed that it was difficult for an
investigator to keep current on all the statutes and
regul ations. He stated that he had been a practicing
architect since 1974. He specifically stated that the
registration fee was very reasonabl e.

9:21: 05 AM

COLIN MAYNARD, ClVIL ENG NEER, AELS BQOARD, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), testified in support of SB 16. He pointed
out that there were currently 15 engineering |licenses which
included |andscape architects and |and surveyors. He
expl ained that there were roughly 2.5 investigators for the
board four years prior, but the investigators were now
shared between six different boards. He stressed that there
were SO many cases, SO the investigations were difficult to
conplete in a tinely manner. He stressed that SB 16 woul d
provide a nore even investigation and enforcenent of the
licensing laws. He remarked that the fees fluctuate from
year to year, and stressed that oil nobney was not used to
support the board.

JANET M MATHESON,  ARCHI TECT, @ AMERI CAN | NSTITUTE OF
ARCHI TECTS, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), testified in
support of SB 16. She stressed that the bill provided a
necessary change to enforce professional practice in the
state for public safety reasons, because the geographic
disparity of enforcement was currently difficult. She
reiterated that the change would be funded by professiona

i censing fees.

DALE NELSON, CIVIL ENG NEER, CHAIR OF ALASKA PROFESSI ONAL
DESI GN COUNCI L LEGQ SLATI VE COW TTEE, PALMER (via
tel econference), testified 1in support of SB 16. He
explained that the Alaska Professional Design Counci

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 03/06/13 9:09 A M



(APDC) represented nmany different types of licensed
prof essions. He remarked that details of the bill had been
published in the APDC newsletter, and presented to the APDC
Legislative Committee. He stressed that APDC had received
only positive responses to the proposals outlined in the
bill. He stated that he had been a practicing civil
engi neer since 1973, and had personally experienced
fluctuating licensing fees.

9:26:49 AM

Senat or Bishop wondered if the proposed position was an
exenpt position. M. Dowing deferred to M. Habeger
responded that the position was not an exenpt position.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough queried who would be responsible for
the supervising responsibility of the secretary and the
investigator. She noted that the line of conmand for the
i nvestigator was placed wth the board, and wondered if the
board would conduct an annual performance review. M.
Habeger responded that there was adm nistrative activity
wi th human resource support and evaluations. He stressed
that the division had the ability to discipline, but the
board was focused on directing where investigations should
occur in the state.

Vice-Chair Fairclough stressed that the fiscal not e
reflected a range 18 position to conduct investigations
into alleged violations, and would be directly responsible
and accountable to the board. She wondered if the board
woul d be responsible for perfornmance reviews. M. Habeger
replied that the board had an annual review process that
was presented to the division, and was used as additiona
gui dance.

Vice-Chair Fairclough wondered if the secretary was a
shared position. M. Habeger responded that the secretary
position was dedicated to the board.

Vice-Chair Fairclough surmsed that there would be two
dedi cated positions. M. Habeger agreed that there would be
two dedicated positions, if the bill were passed.

9: 30: 08 AM

Vice-Chair Fairclough MOED to REPORT SB 16 out of
comi ttee w th i ndi vi dual reconrmendati ons and t he

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 03/06/13 9:09 A M



acconpanyi ng fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

SB 16 was REPORTED out of conmmittee with a "do pass”
recomrendation and with a new fiscal inpact note from the
Depart ment of Commrerce, Conmunity and Econom c Devel opnent.

#sb23
SENATE BI LL NO 23

"An Act relating to devel opnment project financing by
t he Al aska | ndustri al Devel opnent and Export
Aut hority; relating to the dividends from the Al aska
| ndustri al and Export Authority; authorizing the
Al aska Industrial Devel opnent and Export Authority to
provide financing and issue bonds for a |liquefied
nat ur al gas production system and natural gas
distribution system and providing for an effective
date."

9:31:17 AM

SARAH Fl SHER- GOAD, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA  ENERGY
AUTHORI TY, DEPARTMENT OF COWWERCE, COVMUNITY AND ECONOM C
DEVELOPMENT, i ntroduced herself.

TED LEONARD, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA | NDUSTRI AL
DEVELOPMENT AND EXPORT AUTHORI TY, introduced hinsel f.

Ms. Fisher-Goad explained that there was new information in
response to questions that were offered the week prior. She
pointed out that the fiscal notes were recently revised

One fiscal note was in respect to the Al aska Industrial

Devel opnent and Export Authority (Al DEA) operations. She
noted that the original fiscal note showed revenues to
Al DEA, but it was determined that the revenue should show
revenue to the State of Al aska. The new fiscal note showed
revenues to the State of Alaska through dividend paynents
from AIDEA. She pointed out the two-year lag, with respect
to how the AlIDEA dividend was cal cul ated. She | ooked at the
conprehensi ve spreadsheet that was attached to the fisca

note, which showed the various pieces of the |egislation;

the interior energy plan; the other aspects of the
| egislation that were independent of the interior energy
pl an; and showed a conprehensive |ook at the different
aspects of the |legislation and other issues in the
operating and capital budgets. She addressed the new fiscal

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 03/06/13 9:09 A M



note which showed the FY 14 governor's request to
capitalize the Sustainable Energy Transm ssion and Supply
Devel opment Fund (SETS). She concluded that both fiscal
notes reflected the $50 mllion to AIDEA for the power
pl ant .

9:33: 55 AM

DAVID MESSI ER, TANANA CHH EFS CONFERENCE, FAIRBANKS (via
tel econference), spoke in support of SB 23. He renarked
that the total economc effect of Natural Gas on the rura
comunities was unclear; but the hub would result in |ower
energy costs in Fairbanks and the surrounding comrunities.
He pointed out that roughly half of the Tanana Chiefs
Conference nenbers lived in and around Fairbanks, and he
believed that the project would have a positive benefit on
the local econony. He remarked that access to | ow cost
energy had led to increased economic activity and
opportunity, and believed that access to |ower cost energy
in Fairbanks would produce simlar results. He stressed
that the legislation would only augnent, but not replace
other alternative energy and weat heri zation fundi ng.

9:36:47 AM

DAVID TEAL, DI RECTOR, LEG SLATIVE FINANCE DI VI SI ON,
expl ai ned that the analysis was a way of separating the gas
project from other inpacts of the fiscal note. He stated
that the fiscal notes included use of other financing
mechani sns, so the analysis |ooked at the gas project in
isolation to conpare the cost to the state versus the
benefits to consuners. He pointed out the top of the
analysis, which was $50 nillion in cash from the general
fund;, $30 mllion in tax credits; and $125 mllion from
additional state expenditures. The total state contribution
to the legislation was $205 million. He stated that the
noney could earn $8.2 mllion at 4 percent earnings, if the
$205 mllion were not spent. He stressed that the $8.2
mllion loss in revenue was the opportunity cost. He
poi nted out that the $125 mllion in the SETS fund woul d be
| oaned by AIDEA to the participants in the project, and
approximately 3 percent interest that would generate $3.5
mllion interest earnings of which AIDEA could pay back to
the state in dividends. He |ooked at the 7800 custoners of
Al DEA that would save an average of about $3000 per year in
fuel, giving a custoner benefit of approximately $3
mllion, resulting in a benefit-cost ratio of $3.50. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 03/06/13 9:09 A M



remar ked that nore sophisticated benefit-cost ratio
anal ysis was required for past energy projects, and many of
those projects resulted in a benefit-cost ratio that was
less than one dollar. He furthered that consumers would
i ncur sone costs, because they needed to pay to convert to
a natural gas system He pointed out that if a consuner
borrowed a 4 percent to pay for a $10,000 system the |oan
woul d cost $1200 a year over ten years. He stressed that he

did not have a position on the bill, but he was nerely
sharing his analysis. He pointed out that the analysis did
not include secondary inpacts |ike propane, or the

potential for the gas to be used by the utilities to |ower
the cost of electricity.

9:42: 22 AM

Senator O son wondered if there the propane availability in
rural conmunities would materialize. M. Teal responded
that the question was beyond his |evel of expertise.

Senator O son specifically queried the cost-benefit ratio
to the rural communities. M. Fisher-Goad responded that
AlDEA was examining that issue through the Rural Energy
Program She pointed out that the AEA intended to ensure a
positive inpact wherever propane would be available. She
specifically remarked that the Northwest Arctic Borough had
wor ked extensively on ensuring that propane had a positive
inmpact on rural comunities for consumers. She furthered
that |iquid natural gas (LNG should also be nade avail abl e
to the rural communities.

Senator O son wondered if there was input fromthe refiners
in Fairbanks regarding LNG M. Fisher-Goad replied that
there AIDEA had conversations with LNG refiners. She stated
that the Golden Valley Electric Association in Flint Hills
had partnered to potentially develop the nmechanism that the
bill would contain. She furthered that the association was
no longer a partner as a project proponent, but felt that
Flint HIlls was expected to be a viable custonmer. She
stressed that the LNG availability to rural areas would
benefit Flint HIls' operational costs. She added that the
LNG proposal was a part of the due diligence process that
the AIDEA technical team was exam ning to ensure that there
woul d be custoners to fulfill the industrial | oad.

9:48:13 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 03/06/13 9:09 A M



Senator O son wondered what efforts were being nade to
ensure that the refineries renmained viable. M. Fisher-Goad
replied that this issue was currently wunder exam nation.
She pointed out that the high cost of diesel fuel had
eroded the market share and custoners. She stressed that
the purpose of SB 23 was to inpact as many people as
possi ble. She felt that the alternative-doi ng nothing-would
i npact the overall economics in Alaska, including the LNG
refineries and custoners.

Senator (O son specifically looked at the heating oil
distributors, and wondered how the admnistration would
deal with out of work, skilled enployees being unenpl oyed
due to a conpetitive product. M. Fisher-Goad responded
that the package addressed the operational cost of the
refiners. She stressed that the intention of the refiner to
be a custoner would lower their costs. She felt that the
erosion of the heating oil industry in interior Al aska was
a concern, regardless of LNG availability.

9:52:17 AM

Senator O son stressed that he was not opposed to nmaking
energy prices nore economcal in interior Alaska, but felt
that there were many people who could not have access to
the LNG He wondered if there was a consideration for those
i ndi vidual s and busi nesses that could not access LNG and
would potentially suffer as a result. M. Fisher-Goad
r esponded t hat | egi sl ation addr essed t he current
i ndi vi dual s and busi nesses that did not have access to LNG
She stated that the rural energy progranms would address
t hose that could not have access to | ower heating options.

Senator O son commented that he had not seen any effort
form the administration to mtigate the circunstances of
t he uni nt ended consequences of the bill.

BOB SHEFCH K, CHAIR  FAI RBANKS ENERGY COUNCIL, FAI RBANKS

(via teleconference), stated that the Flint Hlls
refinery's main product was jet fuel. He stressed that the
bill would benefit them nore than harmng them He

expl ai ned that t he Petro Star refinery was nor e
conplicated, because they provided jet fuel to Eielson Ar
Force Base and heating fuel in Fairbanks; but the
availability of LNG should assist the economcs of their
refineries. He shared that Petro Star had not indicated a
position saying that the bill would harm their business. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 03/06/13 9:09 A M



shared that the gas utility was currently working toward a
wide LNG distribution network. He concluded that the
perception that there would be a negative inpact on
delivery jobs and distribution was accurate, but would be
offset by a large nunber of trucking jobs bringing trucks
to and fromtown.

9:57:44 AM
AT EASE

9:59: 37 AM
RECONVENED

Vice-Chair Fairclough wondered how the dividend was
affected inside the bill, and would change in description
net income. Ms. Fisher-Goad replied that it was a technical
change, and the dividend cal cul ati on woul d not change.

M. Leonard expl ai ned reiterated Ms. Fi sher - Goad' s
st at enent .

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough commented that there was no
conversati on regar di ng capi tal costs rel at ed to
transportation costs, and wonder ed i f t here was
anticipation to increase capital maintenance of the road
from the North Slope. M. Leonard responded that the
initial projection was approximately 20 to 25 trucks per
day, and the capitalization was built into cost of the
trucks. He furthered that there was work wth the
Depar t ment of Transportation and Publ i c Facilities
(DOT/ PF), and DOT/PF felt that the proposal would not have
a significant inpact on the capital.

Senator Bishop shared that he had conversations wth
distributors that felt that LNG could "save Fairbanks." He
stressed that many distributors had large suns on their
books that had still not been collected from consuners,
because the consuners were unable to pay the cost of fuel
He wondered if there would be due-diligence to determne if
the bill was economical. M. Leonard agreed, and furthered
that it was inportant for the bill to be economcally
viable to the community and would pay for the investnent
from Al DEA.

10: 06: 56 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 03/06/13 9:09 A M



Senat or Bi shop commented that one of his constituents had
and $8000 a week fuel bill, others were desperate for |ower
heati ng costs.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough MOVED to REPORT CS SB 23 (FIN) out of
committee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was
so ordered.

SB 23 was REPORTED out of conmittee with a "do pass”
recomendation and with two new fiscal inmpact notes from
the Depart nent of Conmer ce, Community and Econom c
Devel opnent .

#sb21
SENATE BILL NO 21

"An Act relating to appropriations from taxes paid
under the Alaska Net Inconme Tax Act; relating to the
oil and gas production tax rate; relating to gas used
in the state; relating to nonthly installnment paynents
of the oil and gas production tax; relating to oil and
gas production tax credits for certain |osses and
expenditures; relating to oil and gas production tax
credit certificates; relating to nontransferable tax
credits based on production; relating to the oil and
gas tax credit fund; relating to annual statenments by
producers and explorers; relating to the determ nation
of annual oil and gas production tax values including
adj ustnments based on a percentage of gross value at
the point of production from certain |eases or
properties; maki ng conf orm ng anmendnent s; and
providing for an effective date."

SB 21 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD
#

ADJ OURNVENT
10:11: 16 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:11 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 03/06/13 9:09 A M



